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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Today we will

          3  discuss four pieces of ground-breaking legislation

          4  intended to prevent gun violence and combat illegal

          5  gun trafficking in New York City.

          6                 If passed, these laws will either be

          7  the first of their kind, or substantially tougher

          8  than existing laws in the nation.

          9                 I've always advocated for increased

         10  measures to stem the flow of illegal firearms into

         11  the City's streets, and these bills aim to close

         12  loopholes in the current law to help apprehend and

         13  punish gun traffickers and gun criminals, and

         14  further protect New Yorkers from gun violence.

         15                 I commend the Mayor and the Speaker

         16  for their efforts to address this issue.

         17                 Intro. 362 is also known as the Gun

         18  Offender Registration Act. It requires that

         19  individuals convicted of criminal possession of a

         20  weapon in the third degree, to register their

         21  current addresses and personally report to the NYPD

         22  every six months.

         23                 The crimes in this category include

         24  illegal possession of a loaded handgun, possession

         25  of three or more legal handguns, possession of a

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  handgun by a convicted felon, possession of an

          3  assault weapon and possession of a disguised

          4  firearm.

          5                 Registration requirements will

          6  continue for four years after conviction. If a

          7  defender does not fully comply, it's a class A

          8  misdemeanor. New York City would be the first in the

          9  nation to establish a registry of this nature.

         10                 Each year, approximately 750

         11  individuals are convicted of these types of crimes

         12  in the City. Statistics also show that these

         13  individuals are more likely to be rearrested than

         14  other felons and are four times as likely to be

         15  arrested for homicide.

         16                 Intro. 363 requires gun dealers to

         17  perform physical inspections of their inventories

         18  twice a year, and send a sworn affidavit of these

         19  inspections to the NYPD, and require the reporting

         20  of any missing or stolen guns.

         21                 Currently local gun dealers are only

         22  required to inspect every once a year.

         23                 With these stringent guidelines,

         24  perhaps these gun dealers will not be able to claim

         25  to lose their guns anymore or have them stolen.

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  Thirteen-thousand of these guns are reported lost or

          3  stolen nationwide, and these are a major source for

          4  illegal trafficking.

          5                 Intro. 364 limits multi-handgun

          6  purchases in the City to one every three months,

          7  making it difficult for gun traffickers to purchase

          8  guns through store purchases.

          9                 Under this bill, gun dealers are

         10  barred from selling multiple handguns in the same

         11  transaction, and are also barred from selling a

         12  handgun to someone they know or knew had purchased a

         13  gun within the previous three months.

         14                 According to ATF statistics, multiple

         15  firearms purchased through single sales is a large

         16  contributor to illegal gun trafficking across the

         17  country.

         18                 Current law regulates the number of

         19  handguns that people can possess at one time. And

         20  also the current law bans the sale of multiple

         21  shotguns and rifles. That is a bill which I

         22  previously sponsored in 2004 to be enacted in 2005.

         23                 Intro. 365 bans the use and sale of

         24  gun coloration kits, which are used to paint guns in

         25  bright toy-like colors. Gun coloration kits are
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          2  currently available for purchase over the Internet

          3  and through gun dealers.

          4                 These kits are designed to paint guns

          5  in a number of florescent shades, making them easily

          6  mistakable for toy guns with potentially dangerous

          7  consequences for police officers, children and

          8  community at large. This bill makes it illegal to

          9  color real guns to mimic toys.

         10                 Local Law of 58 of 1999, requires all

         11  toy guns to be certain pastel or fluorescent colors

         12  to ensure that they are not mistaken for real guns.

         13  The availability and use of gun coloration kits,

         14  undermines this law and this bill addresses that.

         15                 Violation of any of these bills would

         16  carry a penalty of up to $1,000, or up to one year

         17  in jail or both.

         18                 In Statewide crime in recent years,

         19  guns continue to be the leading instruments in the

         20  majority of murders in New York City. These bills

         21  target both gun criminals and the sources of illegal

         22  guns in order to help save lives and prevent crime.

         23                 We are happy to have with us today

         24  some of our Council members. We have Council Member

         25  Dan Garodnick, and Council Member Jim Oddo, our
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          2  Minority Leader. Thank you for joining us. Both who

          3  have been a big help in these anti-crime issues,

          4  especially illegal guns.

          5                 And also our Criminal Justice

          6  Coordinator, who I've been happy to work with in the

          7  past on other matters and this matter, in crafting

          8  some of the legislation we have here today, along

          9  with Sue Petito from the Police Department.

         10                 Commissioner, thank you for joining

         11  us today. I believe we do have some prepared

         12  testimony. Okay, I look forward to your testimony.

         13                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         14  FEINBLATT: Thank you very much.

         15                 Good morning, Chairman Vallone and

         16  members of the Committee on Public Safety. My name

         17  is John Feinblatt, and I am the City's Criminal

         18  Justice Coordinator.

         19                 Beside me are Frederico Gebauer, who

         20  coordinates our gun efforts, and Sue Petito, the

         21  NYPD's Assistant Commissioner of Intergovernmental

         22  Affairs.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify on these four important bills that will help

         25  our City crack down on illegal guns and on gun
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          2  violence.

          3                 Two weeks ago, as you know, the FBI

          4  released its annual Uniform Crime Report, which

          5  showed that New York City remains the safest big

          6  city in the nation. But we also know that there is

          7  still a great deal of work to be done.

          8                 Last year, even as the number of

          9  murders dropped to a 40-year low, there were still

         10  more than 300 people murdered with illegal guns, and

         11  two of them were police officers: Detectives Daniel

         12  Enchautelgui and Dillon Stewart.

         13                 To honor their sacrifices and to make

         14  all New York safer, Mayor Bloomberg resolved to

         15  confront head-on the scourge of illegal guns.

         16                 In January, in both the inaugural

         17  address and State of the City speech, he made it

         18  clear that he would bring new urgency and new energy

         19  to the issue.

         20                 Since then he has pursued an

         21  aggressive three-pronged strategy: stronger

         22  enforcement, new legislation, and innovative

         23  litigation.

         24                 This strategy is meant taking the

         25  offensive here at home, building alliances with
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          2  other Mayors around the nation, and standing up to a

          3  Congress that, when it comes to guns, sometimes

          4  tends to let ideology obscure illegality.

          5                 In March, Mayor Bloomberg testified

          6  before Congress on a bill that would restrict access

          7  to and use of trace data. One of the most critical

          8  tools that law enforcement uses in the fight against

          9  illegal guns.

         10                 Mayor Bloomberg made it clear that

         11  restricting trace data would do nothing to protect

         12  the second amendment, but instead would protect

         13  those why buy and sell guns illegally.

         14                 In April Mayor Bloomberg hosted a

         15  bipartisan summit of 15 Mayors from around the

         16  country to share best practices to combatting

         17  illegal guns, discuss cutting-edge strategies and

         18  commitment to working collaboratively on the local,

         19  state and federal levels.

         20                 The response to that summit has been

         21  encouraging. More than 50 Mayors have now joined the

         22  coalition from all parts of the country and from

         23  both political parties and there are more on the

         24  way.

         25                 In May, after a six-week undercover
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          2  operation New York City filed a federal lawsuit

          3  against 15 rogue dealers from five states caught

          4  illegally selling guns to straw purchasers. Dealers

          5  like these are the worst of the worst, the one

          6  percent who account for about 60 percent of all

          7  crime guns nationwide.

          8                 We have a responsibility to enforce

          9  the law against those whose illegal actions harm New

         10  Yorkers, and since more than 80 percent of the crime

         11  guns confiscated here come from out-of-state, our

         12  lawsuit is a matter of necessity.

         13                 Although illegal guns is a national

         14  problem requiring national leadership, there is more

         15  we can do at home, too. That's why the Mayor has

         16  also worked for change at the State level, urging

         17  the State Legislature to pass a law increasing the

         18  penalty of possession of a loaded gun to a minimum

         19  to three and a half years, rather than the current

         20  one year.

         21                 Passage of this bill late this past

         22  Friday night is a great victory for our City and our

         23  State, because it will send an unequivocal message:

         24  Carry a loaded illegal gun onto the street, and risk

         25  spending the next three and a half years or more in
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          2  prison.

          3                 In taking the fight against illegal

          4  guns to all levels of government, we are

          5  particularly pleased to have such strong partners in

          6  the City Council. From the beginning, Speaker Quinn,

          7  along with you, Chairman Vallone, and your

          8  colleagues in the City Council, have made it clear

          9  that you stand with us, and today, by taking up

         10  these four bills we begin the work of making New

         11  York City a model for how to prevent criminals from

         12  obtaining illegal guns.

         13                 These bills aim to reduce both the

         14  supply and demand of illegal guns, by making it

         15  harder to sell illegally and harder to buy

         16  illegally.

         17                 Together they will help accomplish

         18  the goals the Mayor set out in January and which I

         19  know the members of this Committee share.

         20                 Let me briefly address each bill. The

         21  Gun Offender Registration Act, Intro. 362, is the

         22  first law of its kind in the nation, and it

         23  recognizes a simple fact: Gun offenders recidivate

         24  more frequently and more violently than other

         25  felons. In fact, offenders convicted of felony gun
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          2  possession are about four times more likely to be

          3  arrested for homicide compared to other felons.

          4                 Given what we know about the

          5  propensity to commit crimes, we have an obligation

          6  to keep track of gun offenders. We need to know who

          7  they are, where they live, and most important, we

          8  want them to know that we are keeping tabs on them.

          9                 GORA will require people who have

         10  been convicted of a felony gun offense to inform the

         11  NYPD of their addresses and other identifying

         12  information every six months for four years.

         13                 Although we would become the first

         14  jurisdiction to enact a Gun Offender Registry Act,

         15  we have every reason to believe it will save lives.

         16                 For instance, the Washington State

         17  Institute for Public Policy found after the

         18  implementation of registry laws, recidivism rate for

         19  repeat sexual assaults were cut by far more than

         20  half.

         21                 In 1999, the City Council wisely

         22  passed a law requiring that toy guns be certain

         23  bright or pastel colors. A common sense measure to

         24  address the very real danger that a police officer

         25  might mistake a toy gun for a real gun with tragic
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          2  consequences.

          3                 Now, seven years later, we face a

          4  different danger. The possibility that a real gun

          5  might be painted in the very pastel colors that a

          6  police officer or a child would expect to see on a

          7  toy gun.

          8                 It's not hard to imagine how a police

          9  officer might hesitate when confronted with a real

         10  gun that is colored pink. Nor is it hard to imagine

         11  a child in a home picking up a purple gun and

         12  playing with it, or a teen thinking it would be cool

         13  to have a fluorescent gun. Nor is it hard to imagine

         14  ourselves confronted on the street with someone

         15  brandishing a pastel gun and dismissing it as a toy.

         16  All of these situations could result in death that

         17  should never ever happen.

         18                 There is no legitimate reason gun

         19  owners in New York City would need to paint their

         20  guns electric lime or stop light red or lollypop

         21  purple. It's absurd, it's deceptive, it's

         22  irresponsible and it's plain downright dangerous.

         23                 The bill before you, Intro. 365,

         24  would ban guns painted to look like toys and the

         25  possession, sale or marketing of these kits.
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          2                 These first two bills address the

          3  risks posed by criminals and the tools they can use

          4  to disguise their guns. The next two will help

          5  prevent guns from getting into their hands in the

          6  first place.

          7                 In order to supply guns to criminals

          8  on the streets, gun traffickers must buy guns

          9  frequently and in quantity.

         10                 In 2005, the City Council passed a

         11  prohibition on multiple or closely consecutive sales

         12  of rifles and shotguns. This bill, Intro. 364, takes

         13  the next logical step by limiting handgun sales to

         14  one person every 90 days.

         15                 ATF statistics show that purchasing

         16  multiple firearms one time is a trick of the trade

         17  for gun traffickers. Currently no law restricts how

         18  frequently someone can purchase handguns, which are

         19  the trafficker's weapons of choice.

         20                 This bill would simply close that

         21  loophole. Just as there's no legitimate reason why

         22  someone would need a pastel gun, there is absolutely

         23  no legitimate reason why someone would need to buy

         24  more than four handguns per year.

         25                 The experience of other jurisdictions
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          2  shows that this law will be effective. After

          3  Virginia, for example, passed its one gun per month

          4  law, the share of crime guns that came to New

          5  England from Virginia dropped by more than half.

          6  After Maryland passed its law, the number of DC

          7  crime guns traced to Maryland dropped from 20 per

          8  year to zero.

          9                 This simple measure will make it

         10  harder for traffickers to stockpile the guns they

         11  sell.

         12                 Unfortunately, multiple gun sales are

         13  not the only way gun traffickers acquire guns. Every

         14  year approximately 13,000 guns are lost or stolen

         15  from dealers across the country.

         16                 We know that traffickers get their

         17  hands on some of these guns by stealing them, by

         18  buying them from dealers who fake a theft or a loss,

         19  or by recruiting a corrupt employee to steal from an

         20  honest dealer.

         21                 This new inventory bill, Intro. 363,

         22  would put a dent in those practices by requiring

         23  dealers to examine their stock of guns every six

         24  months.

         25                 If dealers notice a missing or stolen
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          2  gun, they will have to report it to the NYPD.

          3                 If dealers are corrupt, this law will

          4  make it easier to catch them. If dealers are honest,

          5  they will notice legitimate gun theft sooner, making

          6  it more likely that the NYPD can find and punish

          7  traffickers and keep illegal guns off the streets.

          8                 New York City has a great opportunity

          9  today. Because this package of legislation will be

         10  the first of its kind that will be a model for other

         11  cities across the nation. But the real significance

         12  is that together by passing these laws that crack

         13  down on both gun criminals and the sources of

         14  illegal guns, we, together, will save lives.

         15                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         16  to testify, and I would be pleased, along with my

         17  colleagues, to answer any questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Commissioner.

         20                 Let's start first with Intro. 362,

         21  the Gun Offender Registration Act. First, when you

         22  mentioned in your testimony that the State passed a

         23  new law Friday, I had not unfortunately had the

         24  opportunity yet, because budget negotiations, to

         25  take a look at that law.
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          2                 But you said that it increases the

          3  penalty from one to three and a half years in jail?

          4  I'm a former prosecutor, obviously, and the one year

          5  in jail, while it existed, was never even given

          6  because of mitigating circumstances which were also

          7  in the law. Does this law deal with those mitigating

          8  circumstances at all?

          9                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         10  FEINBLATT: No. And you're absolutely right. In fact,

         11  the latest statistics for New York City show that 34

         12  percent of people who were convicted of criminal

         13  possession of a loaded gun actually received less

         14  than a year in jail and 20 percent got no jail time

         15  at all.

         16                 The bill that was passed late Friday

         17  night has no exception, no interest of justice

         18  exception, and, therefore, we finally are going to

         19  get what we were promised I think back in 1978 which

         20  was mandatory time for people caught with an illegal

         21  gun.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That is a huge

         23  step forward, if that's actually the case, if there

         24  is no exception in there. And it's a

         25  three-and-a-half-year minimum you said?
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          2                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          3  FEINBLATT: That is correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That will make a

          5  difference.

          6                 Okay. So, how many people are

          7  convicted of illegal gun possession in New York City

          8  every year?

          9                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         10  FEINBLATT: The GORA provision was going to apply,

         11  would apply to about 750 people annually and so

         12  after four years there would be 3,000 people who

         13  were subject to the provisions of GORA.

         14                 The registry law that we are

         15  considering today is broader in fact than what was

         16  passed by Albany on Friday night. Therefore, it

         17  applies to more sections of the penal law than the

         18  26502 subsection 4, which was the focus of the bill

         19  in Albany.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I think I

         21  mentioned the other laws that applies to it in the

         22  opening statement.

         23                 So, to explain again to initiate it,

         24  they would be convicted of one of these enumerated

         25  offenses, they would have to then register with the
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          2  Police Office, the Police Department, and what

          3  happens after that?

          4                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          5  FEINBLATT: They would be obligated to register with

          6  the Police Department, appear once every six months,

          7  verify their name, address, other pedigree

          8  information, and it would be failure to register or

          9  failure to give accurate information would in fact

         10  be an A misdemeanor, as you know, punishable by one

         11  year in jail. Certainly this jurisdiction, as many

         12  others in the country, have experience with registry

         13  laws, primarily in the area of sexual assault. And

         14  as I said in my testimony, the research that has

         15  been done on registry laws shows some real promise.

         16                 Clearly, we want to know who has been

         17  convicted of criminal possession, of stolen

         18  property. We would want to know where they live and

         19  what they're doing. But just as importantly, we want

         20  them to know that we are watching them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And this will

         22  last for four years you said?

         23                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         24  FEINBLATT: Will be four years.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Something just
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          2  popped into my head. If they're going to now do

          3  three and a half years as a minimum in jail for the

          4  first time ever, the four year starts on arrest, I

          5  mean a conviction, the four year starts after they

          6  get out of jail; how does this work?

          7                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          8  FEINBLATT: Well, obviously, because of the action in

          9  Albany on Friday night we will take one more look at

         10  this bill with you, and make sure that they are both

         11  in sync.

         12                 Obviously we did not, when we first

         13  drafted this, as you know, that action hadn't been

         14  taken in Albany, so there may be a few adjustments

         15  we need to make and we will meet with staff and work

         16  those out.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, and the

         18  appearances by people convicted would have to be in

         19  person at the precincts?

         20                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         21  FEINBLATT: That is correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         23                 And what type, have the police --

         24  maybe Sue Petito might have to answer this. Have the

         25  police decided what sort of mechanism would be in
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          2  place for enforcements of this new law?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: At

          4  this point we have not. I think that's going to be a

          5  matter for a lot of discussion of implementation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As you

          7  mentioned, Commissioner Feinblatt, we actually

          8  passed a law regarding shotguns here in the City

          9  Council and fully supported by the Mayor over a year

         10  ago.

         11                 I'm sorry, I'm going to get to the

         12  shotguns at a later time.

         13                 The registry itself, have you, have

         14  your attorneys come to any conclusion regarding any

         15  preemption issues or any civil liberties issues

         16  which might arise?

         17                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         18  FEINBLATT: With the registry? Well, I think that the

         19  best thing to look at is the fact that there are

         20  registry laws already in New York State, as around

         21  the country, and they have survived challenges.

         22  There's no reason to expect that if there were

         23  challenges, that the courts wouldn't use the same

         24  reasoning for these.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, moving on
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          2  to multi-handgun purchases. I discussed shotguns a

          3  moment ago, and the Council limited multi-shotgun

          4  purchases not too long ago with your full support,

          5  and since then obviously there has been a lot of

          6  research done by your office, with some assistance

          7  here by City Council staff, and we determined that

          8  we can broaden this from shotguns to handguns.

          9                 I'd like to think that it's not

         10  because when I did my bill it was mine and we only

         11  did one, and now it's you guys so we think we could

         12  do a lot more. Obviously there's new legal thought

         13  involved here, and what is that? Why do we know

         14  think that we can extend this?

         15                 I love the fact that we've come to

         16  that conclusion, but I want to make sure we've got a

         17  sound, legal basis for doing this.

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: Well, clearly, we think of these as bills

         20  that we announce together, so neither yours nor

         21  ours. They are together.

         22                 I mean, look, you know as well as I

         23  know that the area of firearms is heavily regulated,

         24  both on the State level and the federal level, and

         25  that one has to move delicately on these issues
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          2  because of preemption issues.

          3                 We believe, however, that there has

          4  been some recent case law that has clarified the

          5  situation for us, and makes us believe that this is

          6  an area where we can actually regulate, and I

          7  believe we've shared that case law with staff and

          8  we'd be glad to do so again.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         10                 How many illegal firearms are

         11  confiscated in New York City in any given year?

         12                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         13  FEINBLATT: I don't think I've got that number with

         14  me, but if we can put our hands on it, we'd be glad

         15  to supply it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, the bill

         17  that we're discussing now regarding multiple

         18  purchases has an exception for law enforcement and

         19  military personnel?

         20                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         21  FEINBLATT: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is that correct?

         23  And how does that work? Is it just basically if

         24  you're in law enforcement or military, you're exempt

         25  from this? Or is there a different limit that they
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          2  have?

          3                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          4  FEINBLATT: Well, as you know, there are waivers in

          5  all of these laws that can be provided.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So they would

          7  have to apply for that waiver and then be exempt

          8  from this law?

          9                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         10  FEINBLATT: Yes. And that is something that happens

         11  as a matter of course when appropriate.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         13                 Let's discuss now the inspection,

         14  semi-annual inspections by gun dealers. How many gun

         15  dealerships actually do exist in New York City?

         16                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         17  FEINBLATT: Seventeen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Seventeen.

         19                 What is the requirement? How do you

         20  become a gun dealer? What are the requirements?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: You

         22  apply to the license division of the Police

         23  Department to get a dealer and firearms license, and

         24  there are various requirements, including being a

         25  federal firearms licensee. You need to be 21. You
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          2  need to be a citizen. Requirements are laid out

          3  mostly in the penal law section 400, but there are

          4  additional requirements that the Police

          5  Commissioner's rules in Title 38 also specify that

          6  your premises are inspected by the Police

          7  Department, you need to have a central station

          8  alarm. All of your employees need handgun licenses,

          9  and then there's, they all also have to have handgun

         10  licenses themselves, so that means all of the

         11  regular requirements for any handgun license, being

         12  of good moral character, not having a felony

         13  conviction or a misdemeanor, conviction of domestic

         14  violence. There are a whole list of requirements for

         15  any handgun licensee and so the dealership

         16  individuals, the owners, dealer, whether it's a

         17  corporation, it has to be all the officers, if it's

         18  a partnership it has to be every partner, has to

         19  fulfill all of the requirements.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What are the

         21  current inspection guidelines for these dealerships?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Upon

         23  renewal, which is every two years, renewal of the

         24  dealer license, they need to submit their inventory

         25  to the Police Department, and then we have the
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          2  option of going out and doing either unannounced or

          3  announced inspections to make sure that the

          4  inventory list is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So every two

          6  years presently?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Every

          8  two years, the license lasts for three years and

          9  then it needs to be renewed. So, upon renewal they

         10  submit their inventory list to us.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, this will

         12  would be reducing it from two years to six months.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And

         15  Commissioner, why -- I understand this, because we

         16  discussed this, but explain why the six-month period

         17  would help us combat illegal guns?

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: Well, look, we know, unfortunately, that

         20  lost guns or stolen guns are a route for guns coming

         21  into the illegal market. ATF tells us that there are

         22  over 13,000 guns that are lost or stolen per year.

         23  We've seen absolutely tragic consequences.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thirteen

         25  thousand --
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          2                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          3  FEINBLATT: Thirteen thousand nationwide.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Nationwide. How

          5  many would be in New York, do you know?

          6                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          7  FEINBLATT: In fact, this has not been a major

          8  problem in New York, and that's the good news, and

          9  then obviously the reason why that we're here with

         10  this bill is that we want to always stay ahead of

         11  the curve.

         12                 It's our responsibility to look at

         13  not just what's happening in New York, where we have

         14  an excellent record, but what's happening around the

         15  country, because that obviously informs us of the

         16  trends.

         17                 I mean, we don't have to go many

         18  years back to remember the DC sniper case, and I

         19  believe that gun came from a dealer who had had in

         20  the year prior or that year had over 200 stolen, or

         21  maybe 300 guns stolen in the years prior, and

         22  clearly this is a way where guns make it into the

         23  hands of criminals and into the hands of

         24  traffickers.

         25                 What we will accomplish here is,
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          2  honest dealers will know if they've got lost

          3  inventory and that's a boon for them. We will also

          4  put people on notice that we're watching them, and

          5  if there are corrupt dealers, or corrupt employees,

          6  we will be able to put them on notice that we are

          7  watching. We will have sworn statements coming from

          8  them coming to the PD, and if we inspect later and

          9  we can inspect actually at any time, we see that

         10  they've actually lied on their inventory, that will

         11  result in revocation, plain and simple.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, to summarize

         13  again, I think what you testified to, on a national

         14  level it's a much bigger problem than here in New

         15  York City. What happens on a national level is that

         16  many of these stolen guns are the ones that wind up

         17  here killing our children, and these stolen guns are

         18  either legitimately stolen, and this bill would make

         19  sure that that is discovered quicker. Or they're

         20  claimed to be stolen, and the bill would allow

         21  Police Department's to crack down much easier. So,

         22  this is something we obviously need on a nationwide

         23  level, but, once again, we are staying ahead of the

         24  curve here and leading the way when it comes to

         25  keeping hands, illegal guns away from people who
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          2  should not be possessing them.

          3                 The last bill, then I'm going to get

          4  to some of my colleagues, is the ban on coloration

          5  kits. Once again, this is not something that's been

          6  a problem here in this City, correct? So far,

          7  correct?

          8                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          9  FEINBLATT: That is correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And I want to

         11  just make clear that there has been a bill that

         12  we've discussed in the past about banning toy guns.

         13  This is not that bill. This is not the Burgermeister

         14  bill, where you want to take the toys away from the

         15  kids. This is a different bill where we're banning

         16  painting of guns to look like toys.

         17                 Now, I'm going to play devil's

         18  advocate here because the NRA is here after you but

         19  they may not actually be around to testify, so

         20  they're going to claim, and they have already, gun

         21  owners throughout the country have been using these

         22  type kits to, say, camouflage their guns or just to

         23  decorate their guns as they see fit. It's not

         24  anything -- they claim it's never been used to make

         25  it look like a toy. It's used by legitimate gun
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          2  owners, and we are out of our league here trying to

          3  deal with this.

          4                 How would you answer that?

          5                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          6  FEINBLATT: Well, I would answer it by, there was a

          7  reason why the Council passed a bill that said that

          8  toy guns need to be in certain colors. They did it

          9  for safety reasons. They did it because they didn't

         10  want people to make a mistake about whether a gun

         11  was a toy or not.

         12                 Low and behold we find that the

         13  industry is marketing gun coloration kits that would

         14  allow the everyday person to paint their guns in the

         15  same colors that we have required toy guns to be in,

         16  cherry, lavender, everglades green, sherbert, rose,

         17  lime. There could be no reason to do this other than

         18  to confuse people and that's dangerous. Whether it's

         19  confusing a child who thinks that what looks like a

         20  toy gun is a real gun, that could have tragic

         21  consequences. Whether it's confusing a police

         22  officer who has to make a split second decision and

         23  can't distinguish between a toy gun and a real gun,

         24  particularly knowing that toy guns have to be

         25  certain colors, that could have dangerous
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          2  consequences.

          3                 And in fact, perhaps the saddest part

          4  of all of this is that we know that this is a clever

          5  marketing tool to kids. Soon after you and the Mayor

          6  and the Speaker announced it, one of the news

          7  outlets interviewed teenagers outside of the school,

          8  and what did we find? We found that this would make

          9  guns, these colors would make guns more attractive

         10  to kids. Well, that's the exact opposite of what

         11  we're trying to do here in this City. And, so, I

         12  think that what this bill is, is it's a perfect

         13  compliment, in fact it's the necessary compliment to

         14  what the Council did when it required that toy guns

         15  be certain colors, because what this bill does is it

         16  prevents the Council's own bill from being

         17  undermined.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Just to make

         19  clear, I fully support the bill. I sponsor the bill,

         20  but obviously we're going to have to answer

         21  questions. And I've also been contacted by people

         22  who say that yellow guns are used by search and

         23  rescue teams, so if it's lost or dropped it can be

         24  easily retrieved, and blue guns are actually used by

         25  some Police Departments as a training firearm. So
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          2  how would we --

          3                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          4  FEINBLATT: Let's be clear. Are there colored guns

          5  that are used by Police Department? Yes, there are.

          6  Are those guns painted with gun coloration kits, I

          7  think not.

          8                 In fact, if you look, you can find

          9  that Glock will sell to a Police Department a

         10  colored gun. It can't shoot bullets. It's not

         11  something that was done with a paint kit. It was

         12  manufactured that way. That's why there's an

         13  exception in this bill. That's clearly an exception

         14  for low enforcement.

         15                 But we're talking about very

         16  different animals. The difference between a training

         17  gun manufactured by a company like Glock, in red or

         18  blue, that can't shoot bullets, and a gun coloration

         19  kit that is by its own fact sheet sold to and

         20  designed for the average gun owner. There is no

         21  reason for the average gun owner to have a purple

         22  gun or a lime gun or a strawberry gun. It's

         23  dangerous, it's irresponsible, end of story.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I couldn't agree

         25  more. But obviously there may be people testifying
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          2  after you and I want to give you a chance to respond

          3  to what I believe they're going to be saying.

          4                 First of all, I will introduce

          5  Council Member Addabbo, who has joined us. Thank

          6  you. And I'll move to questions from Council Member

          7  Garodnick.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chairman. And thank you, all, for

         10  being here today and for your leadership and for the

         11  Administration's work on this very important issue.

         12  I just wanted to ask you just a few nuts and bolts

         13  questions about some of the effects or implications

         14  of these intros.

         15                 The first I wanted to start with,

         16  362, the Gun Offender Registration Act, requiring

         17  that somebody, an offender convicted of a felony gun

         18  possession, that they identify or register their

         19  address once every six months for four years.

         20                 My question there is really more of a

         21  pursuit question, in the event that somebody steps

         22  up and let's say for the first two six-month periods

         23  they go ahead and do what they're supposed to under

         24  the law, and then in the third occasion they do not.

         25  And I know that it's a misdemeanor, the question is
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          2  how do we pursue that? Particularly since address

          3  information is part of this and self identification

          4  is part of this, how do you pursue somebody who in

          5  the third registration piece fails to do what

          6  they're supposed to do?

          7                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          8  FEINBLATT: Well, at the time of conviction, we will

          9  know who has been convicted of the germane sections

         10  of the law, and essentially we will know when their

         11  registration requirements are due and when their

         12  in-person requirements are due, and since it's every

         13  six months, one will be able to calendar when they

         14  have to come in.

         15                 And, so, if they don't come in,

         16  that's a clear violation of it at the appointed

         17  time.

         18                 Also there are other ways to know

         19  whether someone is complying with the law. People

         20  give addresses in lots of different situations, and

         21  we've had this experience with the other registry

         22  laws. For instance, if someone is arrested on a

         23  subsequent crime, they always give their address. If

         24  the address they give doesn't match the address

         25  they've given to the Police Department, that would
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          2  give rise to an investigation. And computer links

          3  allow us to make these matches relatively easily.

          4                 As I say, while we have not worked

          5  out all of the implementation schemes for this law,

          6  clearly we have a great deal of experience with

          7  registry laws in this City and in this State through

          8  Megan's Law, and I'm sure we will draw on that

          9  experience as we begin to draft the implementation

         10  scheme here.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Understood.

         12  And I appreciate that, and you're absolutely right

         13  that it would be manifestly clear, when somebody

         14  fails to abide by the rules. I suppose the question

         15  is more along the lines of the pursuit, resources,

         16  and whether or not the Police Department today has

         17  the resources to conduct the sort of investigation

         18  that you described in the event that somebody

         19  doesn't actually show up and turn up within the

         20  third six month registration period under this rule.

         21                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         22  FEINBLATT: Well, I think we have to remember, (a)

         23  the Police Department has a great deal of experience

         24  in doing this through Megan's Law.

         25                 (B) we're talking about at the height
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          2  3,000 people at one time. And (c) I think what we

          3  all have to remind ourselves is that there's nothing

          4  that could be more important than pursuing people

          5  who are required under the law to register again.

          6                 I think we should never lose sight of

          7  the fact that these people recidivate more quickly

          8  than other felons, they recidivate more violently

          9  than other felons, and they're four times more

         10  likely to be arrested for a subsequent homicide. I

         11  don't think we need to know anything more than that

         12  to know that this has to be a priority.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: You're

         14  probably right. In fact, my question is not even

         15  going to the substance of the matter, because I

         16  fully agree with you. We are in the middle of budget

         17  season, and should start thinking this way much more

         18  carefully about the resources of the various

         19  departments and the ability to conduct the rules

         20  that we put upon them.

         21                 And the number 3,000, you said that

         22  is the number at any one time of people who would be

         23  affected by this, if numbers were to stand as they

         24  are today?

         25                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR
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          2  FEINBLATT: That is correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, let's

          4  just go for a second to Intro. 365, the gun

          5  coloration. Are any of these kits actually

          6  manufactured in New York City, or are they just sold

          7  in --

          8                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          9  FEINBLATT: Sold in New York City, primarily over the

         10  Internet.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, as far

         12  as we know, none of them are manufactured in New

         13  York City?

         14                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         15  FEINBLATT: That is correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: 364, the

         17  one handgun every three months?

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It limits

         21  handgun sales, one every three months. I guess my

         22  question is here is, as somebody who only buys a

         23  couple of pairs of shoes maybe once or twice a year,

         24  why 90 days as opposed to 180 days, or one a year?

         25  Is this perhaps even too short a period, is the
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          2  first thing that jumps out to me.

          3                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          4  FEINBLATT: I think the Council wisely, under the

          5  leadership of Chairman Vallone, restricted long-gun

          6  purchases to once every 90 days, and our thought was

          7  it made sense to make this parallel.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I should also

          9  point out that the original version that we were

         10  working with was 30 days, we've actually expanded to

         11  90 days.

         12                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         13  FEINBLATT: I believe that was a nudge of the

         14  Chairman's. Good nudge.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         16                 I don't disagree that maybe it should

         17  be longer than that. We did compromise on that. And

         18  there are some people who, legal gun owners who need

         19  to buy two to go hunting, three months is -- I'm as

         20  avid an anti-hunter as you can get, but I guess

         21  three months is a long enough period for them to

         22  wait to do that. And the idea here is to obviously

         23  stop illegal gun trafficking. No one is going to

         24  make much money on that if they have to buy one

         25  every 90 days.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let me just

          3  ask a question for my own clarification.

          4                 For somebody who needs or wants to go

          5  hunting, the City Council rule would apply for

          6  rifles and shotguns. This one deals with handgun

          7  sales. The people who would be most effective by

          8  this, who are buying guns illegally, are collectors?

          9                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         10  FEINBLATT: No, this doesn't apply to collectors.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, who

         12  needs to buy a handgun every 90 days? Who needs to

         13  buy -- this is what I don't understand. Who needs to

         14  buy a handgun every 90 days, and how will they be

         15  affected or disappointed by the existence of this

         16  law or a 180-day -- I'm not even sure I know who

         17  we're talking about here.

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: We're talking about, look, who needs to

         20  buy a handgun every 90 days, four a year. I think

         21  very few people do. But I think that always with

         22  this kind of legislation, you want to strike a

         23  balance. You want to make it clear, look, we have no

         24  quarrel with people who play by the rules. We have

         25  no quarrel with people who legitimately want to buy
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          2  guns. We have no quarrel with dealers who are

          3  legitimately selling guns. So, what you want to do

          4  is analyze how laws can be abused. And you want to

          5  look at the patterns and the trends that traffickers

          6  use. So, our conclusion was, make it parallel with

          7  what the City Council has already passed. Try to

          8  strike a balance between the legitimate rights of

          9  people to buy guns and to have guns, the legitimate

         10  rights of people to sell guns, and the need for

         11  crime control. And so we thought this struck that

         12  balance.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And Council

         14  Member, one other thing. We are in unchartered legal

         15  waters here, and, in fact, when we originally passed

         16  our bill, we perhaps did not believe we could go

         17  this far, now we do. And when we start making

         18  restrictions that would basically impinge on

         19  someone's right to have a gun, we are now moving

         20  further past the jurisdiction we have.

         21                 Once we limit it to say further than

         22  say 90 days, it's very easy for a court to say we

         23  are legislating, we are making gun legislation,

         24  which seriously affects someone's right to have a

         25  gun, and only the State can do that. So, that's just
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          2  something we have to keep in mind as we pass any of

          3  these laws.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Understood.

          5  That's important, an important point. I'm still left

          6  a little confused, and I won't pursue this much

          7  further, but I do understand the idea of somebody

          8  who is a legal purchaser of a rifle or a shotgun

          9  feeling a need to stay up with the times and find

         10  new machinery to be able to pursue a sport that they

         11  enjoyed.

         12                 It's not my thing, buy I understand

         13  that some people like it.

         14                 The issue really has to do with the

         15  handguns themselves, and this is where I actually

         16  just don't even know who or for what purpose. I

         17  don't really want to make it a who, what purpose is

         18  a New Yorker buying a handgun, and for what are they

         19  using a handgun?

         20                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         21  FEINBLATT: You know, there are many classes under

         22  the registry laws that allow people to have handguns

         23  in New York. And as I said, I mean let's put this in

         24  context. I think there are only three states in the

         25  country that have legislation that limits handgun
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          2  purchases to once every 30 days, I think it's

          3  California, Maryland and Virginia. New York is

          4  clearly at the cutting edge by making handgun

          5  purchases limited to once every 90 days and making

          6  it parallel with long guns.

          7                 But at the same time, I want to make

          8  clear, as the Mayor has made clear, what we're

          9  interested here is in crime control, not in gun

         10  control, and therefore we want to strike the right

         11  balance.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: The last

         13  thing is on Intro. 363, the inventory bill. I was

         14  interested to hear the number of 17, as the number

         15  of gun dealers who are present in New York City

         16  today?

         17                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         18  FEINBLATT: That is correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Legal gun

         20  dealers in New York City.

         21                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         22  FEINBLATT: That's correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Has any of

         24  the gun violence in recent years, or illegal

         25  possession, has any of the illegal activity been
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          2  traced to these 17? Or I understand that it's

          3  predominantly from out-of-state, the violations of

          4  the law, guns are coming in illegally, has anything

          5  been traced to these 17?

          6                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          7  FEINBLATT: Well, as you know, in New York City well

          8  over 80 percent, I think the last calculation that

          9  we looked at with the Police Department was closer

         10  to 90 percent, the crime guns come from out of

         11  state.

         12                 So to a large extent this is a

         13  problem of states outside of New York supplying

         14  crime guns to New York.

         15                 However, are there traces to gun

         16  dealers in New York City and New York State? Yes,

         17  there are. And in fact, you'll know that, I'm sure

         18  you'll know that several weeks ago the Police

         19  Department moved against two gun dealers in New York

         20  City itself, and there were arrests made in those

         21  cases, there are pending misdemeanor charges in

         22  Criminal Court in both Queens and Brooklyn for those

         23  two gun dealers. And the people who engaged in

         24  illegal sales have both, both have their licenses

         25  revoked.
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          2                 So, is our problem largely an

          3  out-of-state problem? Absolutely. Is that why the

          4  Mayor has made it clear that he will cross State

          5  lines to fight this issue? Absolutely.

          6                 Does it mean that the problem is

          7  exclusively out of state? No it is not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

          9  And the last question I had for you was on the

         10  federal lawsuit. If you would just give us an update

         11  on the status of that suit against the 15

         12  out-of-state dealers in five states? Where does that

         13  stand today?

         14                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         15  FEINBLATT: It's in Federal Court, in front of Judge

         16  Weinstein. Judge Weinstein is also the judge that is

         17  handling the manufacturers suit in New York. It is

         18  at the very beginning stages. But as you know, the

         19  City proceeded against 15 rogue dealers, based on

         20  undercover simulated straw purchases that were made,

         21  and those dealers were in five states, Pennsylvania,

         22  Ohio, Virginia, South Carolina and Georgia, all five

         23  of those states are responsible for a large number

         24  of the crime guns that are traced to New York City.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, let
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          2  me just finish by thanking you for your very

          3  aggressive pursuit of this issue. And that lawsuit I

          4  thought was a great move, and I will be very happy

          5  to sign onto all four of these intros that have been

          6  presented today, and thank you very much for coming.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          9  Council member.

         10                 Let me just, again, I have this

         11  testimony of the NRA here, and we were just

         12  discussing this and they point out, they state "as a

         13  legal matter, we believe the attempt to regulate

         14  handgun commerce set forth within these intros is

         15  preempted by the State Legislative scheme concerning

         16  licensing and distribution of handguns."

         17                 Then they put in parenthesis,  a

         18  position we understand to have long been generally

         19  shared by the staff of the City Council, based on

         20  what we had done with shotgun. So, it's one of the

         21  reasons we move cautiously.

         22                 We've been joined by Council Member

         23  Yassky, who has been at the forefront of the City

         24  Council's fight against illegal guns. Why don't we

         25  give him a chance to make a brief statement.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

          3  you, Chair Vallone. I just have a couple of

          4  questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, then let

          6  me go to Council Member Oddo first, and then to you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman.

          9                 I actually was going to lead with

         10  essentially the same question that Dan concluded

         11  with, and that was just spending a little time to

         12  talk about the scope of how much this 17 legal

         13  licensed dealers within the City, how much they

         14  contribute to the problem. I guess essentially you

         15  answered that, but are these dealers long-time

         16  dealers, or is there lots of turnover in this? I

         17  guess maybe the PD can answer. Is there a lot of

         18  turnover in this industry, or have these folks been

         19  doing this for a long time?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No,

         21  they're very stable. I believe they've been doing

         22  this for a long time.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And have we had

         24  a problem prior to these two that you referred to,

         25  have we had any problems with any of the dealers
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          2  previously?

          3                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          4  FEINBLATT: I think that many years ago the police

          5  took a very hard look at dealers that were operating

          6  in New York City. And I think that there was action

          7  I think taken against some of them. And the Police

          8  Department obviously scrutinizes the behavior of the

          9  dealers in New York City very, very closely. And as

         10  I say, we are lucky in one sense, the problem is

         11  primarily an out-of-state problem. Primarily is

         12  probably the wrong word, it's actually

         13  overwhelmingly an out-of-state problem, and I think

         14  that we're all fortunate for that. That is why we

         15  have to cross state lines. But if the question is do

         16  we scrutinize the dealers in New York City, of

         17  course we do, and I remind you again, out of 17 we

         18  just took action against two. Not an insignificant

         19  number.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And is there a

         21  universe of folks who actually apply, and do we know

         22  those numbers who actually apply for a license and

         23  we say good luck but not here.

         24                 My point is that we demonstrated that

         25  if you add a little common sense to the process, you
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          2  can weed out the bad apples?

          3                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          4  FEINBLATT: Look, the Police Department scrutinizes

          5  this as carefully as I think humanly possible.

          6  However, one always should never relax in the

          7  situation, and there is nothing more dangerous to

          8  the public safety of New Yorkers than guns and

          9  that's why we continue to scrutinize.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let me take a

         11  step back so you know where I'm coming from. I'm not

         12  trying to be adversarial. I'm a supporter of this

         13  legislation, I'm a supporter of your efforts. My

         14  point is I'm trying to sort of demonstrate that we

         15  take steps to inject some sanity into this process

         16  and their clear diffidence. It's the O.K. Corral for

         17  the rest of the country and we pay the price for it.

         18                 So, I'm on your side. I don't mean to

         19  frame these questions in a way where I'm trying to

         20  lead you down the path, or you might think I'm

         21  leading you down the path.

         22                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         23  FEINBLATT: No, I understand that. I'll give you one

         24  interesting fact, because people often think that

         25  this is a New York City problem with out-of-state
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          2  gun dealers supplying crime guns or have crime guns

          3  traced to New York City.

          4                 In fact, when we had the summit of

          5  Mayors from across the country at Gracie Mansion

          6  just two months ago, where we had Mayors from all

          7  parts of the country, we did some analysis of their

          8  problems as well, and we found that over 50 percent

          9  of their crime guns came from out of state.

         10                 And, so, this is not just a New York

         11  City problem. This is a problem that in fact is a

         12  problem shared by many mayors throughout the

         13  country.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The rules that

         15  the licensing requirements that exist via the NYPD,

         16  is that codified by statute or is that internal

         17  regulations?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         19  They're official rules of the City of New York,

         20  Title 38 of the rules of the City of New York. They

         21  are posted as a link on the Police Department's

         22  website under the license division.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: It will be

         24  interesting to take that language and apply it, in

         25  terms of background checks, et cetera, apply it to
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          2  other industries that we don't have licensed yet

          3  here in the City.

          4                 The 80 percent and -- I'm sorry, the

          5  one percent and --

          6                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          7  FEINBLATT: It's one percent to dealers --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Of the 60.

          9                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         10  FEINBLATT: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: If I make that

         12  point and I'm in this debate with some of our

         13  friends from the NRA, are they going to come back to

         14  me and say, well, that's because the one percent are

         15  the big manufacturers so that number is slanted? Is

         16  it virtue of size or that egregious?

         17                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         18  FEINBLATT: Well, this is one percent of the dealers

         19  now, not manufacturers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Right.

         21                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         22  FEINBLATT: There is no evidence to suggest that this

         23  stat is a product of the size of the dealers.

         24                 There are some bad apples. There are

         25  very few bad apples, in fact.
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          2                 I mean, by and large gun dealers play

          3  by the rules. By and large gun dealers know the law

          4  and do what they're supposed to do. When we did our

          5  undercover operations, we found that gun dealers

          6  said no. We won't make this sale, in fact, I think

          7  that when the Mayor showed the videotape of two gun

          8  dealers, he showed one that played by the rules and

          9  one who didn't. And we have no quarrel with those

         10  that play by the rules.

         11                 But there is a very small group of

         12  bad apples. There is a very small group of dealers

         13  who don't play by the rules, and those are the ones

         14  that we all have to be concerned with.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I know.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Commissioner,

         18  can you update us on the Mayor's national fight

         19  against the guns that are affecting New York City,

         20  the illegal guns and what the latest is?

         21                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         22  FEINBLATT: Yes. Well, as I say, just two months ago,

         23  as you know, the Mayor, along with Mayor Minuno of

         24  Boston, convened a bipartisan group of Mayors who

         25  came to New York City to look at, together at the
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          2  issue of illegal guns and to try to work to come up

          3  with a strategy to fight illegal guns, both locally

          4  and on the national level.

          5                 They, together, signed a set of

          6  principals and that group has grown from 15 mayors

          7  two months ago to 52 mayors and is still growing.

          8                 Essentially what we found in that

          9  summit and what we continue to find as we speak to

         10  Mayors across the country is that they have the most

         11  authentic voice here on illegal guns.

         12                 They're the ones, as you know, who

         13  get the calls at 4:00 a.m. in the morning to go to

         14  the hospital, and they're the ones who have to

         15  comfort the victims of gun violence, the widows of

         16  police officers, they're the ones on the front line.

         17  And, so, this Coalition is growing. Clearly some of

         18  the efforts of the Coalition in the past two months

         19  since it was formed have been focused on what

         20  Congress is trying to do in Washington.

         21                 As you know, that there are strenuous

         22  efforts about in Washington to restrict the use of

         23  trace data, the access to trace data, and the

         24  sharing of trace data. And that will have one

         25  effect, which will be to make it harder for us to
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          2  fight the scourge of illegal guns, trace data, the

          3  single most critical element in identifying patterns

          4  of trafficking and identifying the bad apples and in

          5  understanding how to wage an aggressive campaign in

          6  illegal guns. Unfortunately, Congress continues to

          7  make aggressive moves to limit law enforcement's

          8  ability to get the data, to share the data and to

          9  use the data in civil proceedings, in proceedings to

         10  revoke licenses, and essentially I think the bottom

         11  line is that Congress is asking law enforcement to

         12  fight illegal guns with one hand behind their back

         13  while giving a free pass to rogue gun dealers.

         14                 It's plain and simple, the priority

         15  of the Mayors who have joined us in this coalition

         16  is to protect the citizens of their cities and

         17  unfortunately seems to be the priority of many

         18  members of Congress to protect the gun industry.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Where are those

         20  bills now that would prohibit the use of trace data?

         21                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         22  FEINBLATT: Well, the TR amendment, which is the

         23  original act by Congress to prohibit the use of

         24  trace data, is now in the Appropriations, the

         25  current Appropriations bill, next week. The Senate
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          2  will look at the Appropriations Bill, and I believe

          3  a subcommittee will mark it up, and we expect a vote

          4  on that imminently.

          5                 And so, it's extraordinarily

          6  important to make it clear to people on the Senate

          7  side who are considering the Appropriation bill,

          8  that if they are serious about protecting the

          9  citizens of this country and if they're serious

         10  about giving law enforcement all the tools that they

         11  need, and cities all the tools they need to fight

         12  the scourge of illegal guns, then that language must

         13  be removed from the appropriations rider.

         14                 The three other bills that the Mayor

         15  has been outspoken about, HR5005, HR5092 and HR1384,

         16  all in different ways limit the access to trace

         17  data, as well as give dealers the ability to sell

         18  across the country, as well as change the burdens of

         19  proof when prosecuting traffickers are awaiting

         20  house mark-up, and they have not been marked up as

         21  of yet.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, we will

         23  stand beside you, at least most of us will, in your

         24  fight against these bills, and we're going to put a

         25  resolution in condemning them as soon as possible.
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          2  So, I'm sure the Council members will also sign on.

          3                 We've already put in the resolution,

          4  so we're way ahead of where I thought I was. Good

          5  staff.

          6                 Council Member, we've been joined by

          7  Council Member Monserrate. I know that Council

          8  Member Katz has stopped by for a few moments and we

          9  can go now to Council Member Yassky for questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         11  Chair Vallone.

         12                 Good morning. I just have a couple of

         13  questions about the state of play of gun trafficking

         14  enforcement. Do you have some numbers about how many

         15  prosecutions, arrests, whatever, anything we can

         16  measure for gun trafficking in New York City in the

         17  last year?

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: I do not have that with me. Obviously we

         20  can take a look at that and try to supply you with

         21  it.

         22                 We do know that there is some good

         23  news, however. Shootings are down in New York City,

         24  I believe, overall four percent so far this year,

         25  and when we look at the impact zones, which you know
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          2  are often the place where shootings have been the

          3  most frequent, both shooting incidents and crime in

          4  general is down 15 percent. And so, I think that the

          5  Police Department clearly, through the impact

          6  initiative is continuing to focus its efforts and

          7  its manpower where the problems are most severe, and

          8  I think it's just plain common sense we're putting

          9  our resources where the problems are, and we're

         10  getting good results.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes,

         12  definitely.

         13                 In terms of gun trafficking, do you

         14  have a vague sense of -- I mean, more than ten,

         15  fewer than ten?

         16                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         17  FEINBLATT: I don't have the stats.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are those

         19  numbers collected, do you think, by the Police

         20  Department?

         21                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         22  FEINBLATT: I think that probably. I don't have them.

         23  I don't have them.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you know if

         25  they're collected? Do you know if they're available?
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          2  I'm just asking.

          3                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          4  FEINBLATT: I don't know. I can check, in terms of

          5  gun trafficking. Obviously, you know, how one

          6  defines gun trafficking.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I mean

          8  specifically for the provision of, you know, New

          9  York Penal Law for illegal sale or transfer of a

         10  firearm?

         11                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         12  FEINBLATT: I do not have them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Because how

         14  would we measure our success in the war on gun

         15  trafficking without knowing how many traffickers

         16  we're arresting?

         17                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         18  FEINBLATT: Well, there are many ways, obviously, to

         19  measure this. I mean, obviously --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Wouldn't that

         21  be a good measure?

         22                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         23  FEINBLATT: It would be a measure.

         24                 Clearly, what you want to look at is

         25  many things. You want to look at what are the
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          2  shooting stats. You want to look at shooting

          3  victims. You want to look at the number of people

          4  who are arrested for the possession of gun, or the

          5  possession, use of guns.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you know

          7  how many of that last number there is? How many --

          8                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          9  FEINBLATT: Well, criminal possession of stolen guns

         10  we know under Subdivision 4, which is the most

         11  common, it is about 750 a year in New York City.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'm sorry,

         13  that's possession of a stolen gun?

         14                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         15  FEINBLATT: Possession of a --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: An unlicensed

         17  gun.

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: Right. Criminal possession of a loaded

         20  gun is about 750 a year. And you want to look at

         21  trace data. I mean, in fact, in many ways trace data

         22  is probably the most revealing, because if we're

         23  really talking about trying to understand

         24  trafficking patterns, I think one of the most

         25  important things to see is if you can change the
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          2  avenues in which guns come to New York.

          3                 And as I know you know, I think that

          4  the Police Department announced their critical

          5  program in the past several months, which I think

          6  will change our ability to understand trafficking

          7  patterns and to prosecute trafficking patterns,

          8  which is that we're going to debrief gun offenders

          9  as essentially as business as usual.

         10                 We've also provided in this year's

         11  Executive Budget for the District Attorneys' Office,

         12  and a large part of that will also enable them to be

         13  able to debrief. Because I think it's through

         14  debriefing we will really understand patterns. I

         15  think in addition, the groundbreaking legislation

         16  passed in Albany on Friday night raises the penalty

         17  for criminal possession of a loaded firearm, will

         18  also have a huge impact, not just on incapacitation,

         19  but certainly will enable us, because the penalties

         20  are now real, and they never had been before, to get

         21  much more information about people from people who

         22  are arrested.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Absolutely. I

         24  think the debriefing initiative is just hugely

         25  important, and I really commend the NYPD for doing
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          2  that. But I'm just, if there are 750 illegal

          3  possession arrests, there are probably close to 750

          4  illegal transfers that led to that person being in

          5  possession, maybe some of them they stole the gun

          6  directly themselves, but you know, almost certainly

          7  I'm sure you'd agree, 650 to 750 were illegally

          8  transferred to that person. I was wondering how many

          9  of those 650 illegal transfers were arrested and

         10  prosecuted. Do we have some sense of that?

         11                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         12  FEINBLATT: I don't have the information that you're

         13  asking for.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Could you get

         15  back to us with that?

         16                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         17  FEINBLATT: If we collect it in that way, we'll take

         18  a look.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Or could you

         20  at least get back to whether or not you collect the

         21  data, and how many --

         22                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         23  FEINBLATT: In fact --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'm sorry,

         25  just, could you get back to whether you collect the
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          2  data as to how many illegal transfer arrests or

          3  prosecutions there are? And if you do collect it,

          4  what the data is.

          5                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          6  FEINBLATT: We'll take a look at it. But as you know,

          7  I mean, in terms of trafficking patterns, for

          8  instance, one gun may be transferred from

          9  person-to-person-to-person.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Right.

         11                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         12  FEINBLATT: So, I'm not too sure that your

         13  mathematical formula can work.

         14                 Also, ATF --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'm sorry,

         16  just bear with me because I'm curious.

         17                 What I said was, if there are 750

         18  arrests, 750 individuals arrested with illegal, for

         19  illegal possession of a firearm, let's assume that

         20  there's only one firearm per individual arrested,

         21  they may have more than one, even if it's only one,

         22  at least 650 of those -- and those are 750 different

         23  firearms, unless somebody was arrested, got out,

         24  arrested again with the same firearm, so very

         25  unlikely, there must be at least 650 illegal
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          2  transfers that led to those illegal possessions. Do

          3  you disagree with that math?

          4                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          5  FEINBLATT: I have not calculated this, Councilman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Whether

          7  it's 650 or 600, it's plainly that, by your own

          8  testimony, most guns that are possessed here are

          9  brought in illegally, that's why you're so focused

         10  on these efforts, correct?

         11                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         12  FEINBLATT: Most crime guns in New York City come

         13  from out of state. Most of those are through straw

         14  purchases. There are other routes, obviously, as you

         15  well know, where illegal guns get into the hands of

         16  criminals.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

         18                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         19  FEINBLATT: What we know is that this is a

         20  complicated story of how guns travel.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: It's very

         22  complicated. No question.

         23                 All I'm saying is, given those

         24  numbers, if there were, say ten prosecutions for

         25  illegal transfer of a firearm, that would to me
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          2  suggest that most, the vast bulk of people who are

          3  engaged in illegal trafficking are getting away with

          4  it, which would be troubling. That's my only

          5  suggestion there.

          6                 And before when I asked if you would

          7  at least tell us whether you collect the data, about

          8  number of people arrested, prosecuted, because I

          9  know those are two different things, for illegal

         10  transfer, you said I'll look at that. You could

         11  always tell us whether you collect that data, right?

         12                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         13  FEINBLATT: We will take a look and see what we've

         14  got, Councilman. Yes, absolutely. And the DAs'

         15  offices will have some of this data, the Police

         16  Department will have some of this data, and ATF will

         17  have some of this data, and we will look and see

         18  what's collected and let you know.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a very

         22  good point, Council Member Yassky.

         23                 Again, I used to prosecute these all

         24  the time, and we did gun possession constantly, and

         25  I don't remember ever getting handed an illegal gun
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          2  transfer case to prosecute.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: For what it's

          4  worth, it's old data now, but the last time they

          5  gave me the data the State Criminal Justice

          6  Coordinator gave it for New York State and it was

          7  something on the order of 17, 17, 18, it was

          8  something like that, prosecutions in New York City

          9  for illegal transfer, in the year. And I made a fuss

         10  about that, and then we haven't gotten that data

         11  ever since then.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We should look

         13  into that data. The problem, obviously, is that

         14  these cases take a lot of resources, and the DAs

         15  especially, and the police just don't have them

         16  right now. But it is a very interesting area to look

         17  into to combat this.

         18                 Commissioner, what percentage of

         19  homicides do involve guns?

         20                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         21  FEINBLATT: About 60 percent.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sixty percent.

         23  Because, unfortunately, as you know, this year

         24  homicides are up a little bit. It's obviously a

         25  concern.
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          2                 Are there any other questions from

          3  Council members?

          4                 Commissioner, we have other testimony

          5  that's been submitted by New Yorkers Against Gun

          6  Violence, and by the General Counsel to the New York

          7  State Rifle and Pistol Association, neither which

          8  could remain to testify. I'll let you guess which

          9  one likes every bill and which one doesn't like

         10  every bill, but obviously New Yorkers Against Gun

         11  Violence supports our efforts completely, which the

         12  New York State Rifle and Pistol Association does

         13  not. But I think at least you've answered the

         14  concerns that I raised that they would have.

         15                 Again, we are very proud to have

         16  worked with you on this legislation, and we got this

         17  hearing done as quickly as we could possibly do,

         18  despite the fact the budget will hopefully be

         19  happening any day now, and we do need to just make

         20  that one change we discussed regarding the amount of

         21  time that the gun registry would last for. But,

         22  hopefully, after that's done we will be able to move

         23  this through Committee and through the full Council

         24  and have some of the toughest and most unique laws

         25  in the entire country when it comes to protecting
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          2  citizens from illegal guns.

          3                 So, thank you for all your efforts.

          4                 And Council Member Monserrate has

          5  come up with a question.

          6                 Okay, good timing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Good

          8  afternoon to all. Thank you for being here. I have a

          9  question that 60 percent of the homicides in New

         10  York City involve guns. How many shootings occur in

         11  New York City? How many did we have last year, do we

         12  know?

         13                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

         14  FEINBLATT: If you will bear with me, I think I have

         15  that data.

         16                 I actually don't have that data with

         17  me. I can tell you that if you look at the number of

         18  shooting victims, it's down four percent from last

         19  year at the same time period, and this same time

         20  period last year it was I think about 735 and this

         21  year it's about 709, but that's not the full year.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

         23  thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         25  Council member.
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          2                 So, again, Commissioner, we look

          3  forward to continuing to work with you on these

          4  bills and any other new ones we can come up with,

          5  that would serve this purpose, and thank you for

          6  your time and testimony today.

          7                 CRIMINAL JUSTICE COORDINATOR

          8  FEINBLATT: Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This meeting is

         10  adjourned.

         11                 (The following written testimony was

         12  read into the record.)

         13

         14
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         16  Patrick W. Brophy, Esq.
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         22
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                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2

          3                 I am pleased to present our written

          4  testimony and comments for the record, on behalf of

          5  the New York State Rifle & Pistol Association, Inc.

          6  ("Association"), regarding Int. Nos. 362, 363, 364

          7  and 365. The Association is the New York State

          8  affiliate of the National Rifle Association of

          9  America ("NRA").

         10                 As a preface to our written comments

         11  regarding each proposed new law, we respectfully

         12  repeat the concluding paragraph of the (much longer

         13  and detailed) preface to our November 15, 2004

         14  testimony before this Committee on the occasion of

         15  gun control legislation proposed at that time:

         16                 Today's legislative agenda looks to

         17  further the folly of a demonstrably failed idea. Gun

         18  control will not work better if it is tried harder.

         19  It will fail harder. It will engender still greater

         20  disrespect for the law and an eve greater demand for

         21  an undocumented marketplace. We respectfully

         22  challenge the members of this Committee to break

         23  with the failed urban gun control orthodoxy, to

         24  respect the rights and freedom of the people as the

         25  governments of thirty-eight states do, and to act
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          2  instead as partners with the Police Department,

          3  District Attorneys and Courts in promising

          4  strategies aimed at criminals, not at the law

          5  abiding and defenseless.

          6                 Int. No. 362: A Gun Offender

          7  Registry.

          8                 The Association opposes Int. No. 362.

          9                 The proposition that genuine

         10  criminals may warrant continued attention upon their

         11  release from incarceration may well have some merit.

         12  Int. No. 362 in its current form is, however,

         13  focused on status-offenders rather than persons with

         14  demonstrated histories of armed violence and/or

         15  otherwise convincing histories of incorrigible

         16  anti-social criminal behavior.

         17                 In prior testimony before this

         18  Committee we have set forth our fundamental,

         19  philosophical and practical objections to the

         20  overarching and over-reaching, thrust of gun control

         21  in New York City.

         22                 In a nutshell, New York City

         23  implements increasingly burdensome and non-intuitive

         24  laws, rules and unwritten administrative practices

         25  to the peril of persons who have no genuine criminal
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          2  intent, all the while thereby creating and

          3  nourishing the conditions for the thriving

          4  marketplace for undocumented firearms by which the

          5  City's elected leaders, a la'Capt. Renaud, are

          6  "shocked." Elected officials call for more gun

          7  control, and deceptively assure a sympathetic press

          8  and ill-informed public that they are focused only

          9  on illegal guns, while failing to note that what

         10  they have deemed illegal in New York City would be

         11  perfectly legal in most of the rest of America. It

         12  continues to amaze us that we have yet to find an

         13  elected leader in New York City who cares about the

         14  racially disparate impact, on both status

         15  incarceration and self-defense rights, resulting

         16  from our City's dysfunctional gun control fixation.

         17                 There is not something wrong with the

         18  thinking in most of the rest of America. There is a

         19  demonstrable and enduring collective irrationality

         20  concerning public safety and firearms in New York

         21  City. The direct result (aside from a massive

         22  violation of the right to keep and bear arms) is a

         23  substantial undocumented marketplace for firearms

         24  imported into New York City, that New York City

         25  struggles to regulate and cannot.
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          2                 The beginning of the resolution of

          3  this mess is stunningly obvious: eliminate the

          4  gratuitous monetary, bureaucratic, privacy and penal

          5  abuses targeted at persons who wish to be

          6  law-abiding gun owners in the City, bring the

          7  commerce lawfully to New York City licensed retail

          8  gun stores, take advantage of the increased revenue

          9  from sales taxes on locally and legally purchased

         10  firearms that are now illegally purchased in the

         11  untaxed, undocumented marketplace, and fairly and

         12  reasonably regulate it from within. Today the City

         13  looks once more to miss the obvious opportunity, and

         14  instead to march further in the wrong direction.

         15                 The chief difficulty, from a

         16  fundamental fairness viewpoint, in heaping more

         17  punishments upon some persons who may have pled

         18  guilty to or been adjudicated guilty of a violation

         19  of any of subdivisions (4), (5), (6), (7) or (8) of

         20  penal Law 265.02 is that the proscriptions set forth

         21  therein (1) are not proscriptions that would be

         22  intuitively expected by most Americans and (2) are

         23  violative of every citizen's right to keep and bear

         24  arms.

         25                 For example, an American who moves
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          2  from elsewhere in the United States to New York City

          3  with three or more firearms, and then tries to get

          4  licensed here, will be in violation of Penal Law

          5  265.02(5). An American who moves from elsewhere in

          6  the United States to New York City with a

          7  competition sporting rifle such as a Colt AR-15 or

          8  Springfield M1A will be in violation of Penal Law

          9  265.02(7). Every law enforcement resource devoted to

         10  tracking such people is wasted.

         11                 The obligation to disclose employment

         12  and higher education affiliations gives us a very

         13  strong concern that persons who have paid the

         14  statutorily prescribed penal price for a predicate

         15  violation of Int. No. 362 will be discriminated

         16  against in employment and education, a result

         17  plainly counterproductive to society's strong

         18  interest in the legitimate economic success of every

         19  free citizen, in addition to being grossly unfair.

         20                 Int. No. 363: Bi-Annual Dealer

         21  Inventory and Reporting Mandates.

         22                 The Association takes no position on

         23  Int. No. 363.

         24                 Int. No. 364: Multiple Purchases.

         25                 The Association opposes Int. No. 364.
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          2                 As a practical matter, with respect

          3  to handguns, Int. No. 364 will merely enshrine

          4  longstanding NYPD administrative practice into the

          5  Administrative Code. Our understanding of NYPD

          6  administrative practice going back at least into the

          7  mid-1990s and probably well-before then, is that the

          8  License Division only issues pistol purchase

          9  authorizations one-at-a-time, no more frequently

         10  than every three or four months to the same

         11  licensee.

         12                 As a further practical matter, while

         13  rifle and shotgun collectors and sellers will be

         14  more tightly regulated under Int. No. 364, we

         15  respectfully submit that even the most ardent

         16  proponents of tightening rifle and shotgun

         17  regulations in New York City will agree that the

         18  exercise is largely symbolic and exemplary, targeted

         19  more toward political audiences in Albany and

         20  Washington, D.C. Than at anyone living and working

         21  in New York City.

         22                 The class of collectors who collect

         23  curios and relics (as defined under federal law)

         24  would be unnecessarily restricted in their

         25  collecting by Int. No. 364 to exempt transactions
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          2  made in rifles and shotguns pursuant to a Curio and

          3  Relic-License issued by BATFE would improve the

          4  bill.

          5                 As a legal matter, we believe the

          6  attempt to regulate handgun commerce as set forth

          7  within Int. No. 364 is pre-empted by the state

          8  legislative scheme concerning the licensing and

          9  distribution of handguns within the State of New

         10  York (a position we understand to have long been

         11  generally shared by the staff counsel of this

         12  Council, which is why symbolic rifle and shotgun

         13  commerce regulations have been more forthcoming from

         14  this body over the years than regulation of handgun

         15  commerce).

         16                 We could make esoteric objections

         17  beyond the practical ones and the legal one set

         18  forth, but in view of the realities of the current

         19  legal and administrative environment in New York

         20  City, we will forebear from the academic exercise.

         21                 Int. No. 365: Banning Colored Guns.

         22                 The Association opposes Int. No. 365.

         23                 Int. No. 365 aims to solve a problem

         24  that does not exist. It is redundant of our state

         25  Penal Law 265.02(6), which makes it a Class D felony
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          2  for a "person knowingly [to] Possesses any disguised

          3  gun..." Of course, the genuinely criminal misuse of

          4  a firearm is already variously and seriously

          5  proscribed by other sections of our state Penal Law.

          6  Moreover, we would venture that any dimwit painting

          7  a real handgun in toy colors is already willfully

          8  violating one or more status provisions of Penal Law

          9  265 et seq., and will not e better deterred by a

         10  City Local Law.

         11                 While further criminalizing acts that

         12  are already criminal, along the way Int. No. 365

         13  creates the possibility of unintended but serious

         14  prosecutorial grief for gun owners of no genuine

         15  criminal intent.

         16                 The bill is unfortunately ambiguous.

         17  It does not (and probably cannot) define with

         18  comfortable certainty against the fear of selective

         19  enforcement what it means to have a firearm, rifle

         20  or shotgun "any substantial portion of whose

         21  exterior surface is colored any color other than

         22  black, dark grey, dark green, silver, steel or

         23  nickel..." A seemingly substantial portion of all of

         24  my rifles and my best shotgun are the color of wood,

         25  which this legislation does not sanction. Camouflage
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          2  patterns on shotguns popular with turkey hunters

          3  (and of no known attraction to criminals) night

          4  result in an unintended prosecution, as light brown

          5  is a predominant shade of such patterns, which

          6  frequently cover not only the shotgun's furniture

          7  but also its metal. Many handguns that appear black

          8  from a distance are actually a very dark blue.

          9                 Int. No. 365 gains nothing in the

         10  department of crime control, but does create new

         11  opportunities for confusion and selective

         12  enforcement.

         13                 Conclusion.

         14                 The New York State Rifle & Pistol

         15  Association, Inc. respectfully opposes Int. Nos.

         16  362, 364 and 365, and takes no position on Int. No.

         17  363. Again, we appreciate the opportunity to present

         18  testimony on behalf of the Association, and will be

         19  happy to answer any questions you may have.

         20

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  Jacqueline Kuhls

         24  Executive Director

         25  New Yorkers Against Gun Violence
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          2

          3                 BACKGROUND.

          4                 New York State and New York City

          5  continue to lead the nation with strong gun laws.

          6  For example, New York State is one of only a handful

          7  of stated requiring licensing and registration of

          8  handguns, background checks at gun shows and a

          9  minimum ate of 21 to purchase and possess handguns,

         10  while New York City goes further requiring that

         11  rifle and shotgun owners be licensed and registered.

         12  New York State's strong gun laws are a major reason

         13  that we have one of the lowest gun death rates in

         14  the country. Similarly, New York City has seen

         15  marked decrease in gun deaths over the last 14

         16  years.

         17                 There remain, however, communities,

         18  that are disproportionately affected by gun

         19  violence. Thee are children in New York City who go

         20  to bed at night to the sound of gunfire. Illegal

         21  guns are widely available on the streets of New York

         22  and too many young people know where to get a gun.

         23  This spring the shooting death of two year old David

         24  Pacheco Jr, on Easter Sunday in the Bronx followed

         25  by he shooting death of three year old Tajmere Clark
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          2  in Brooklyn was a defining moment for many New

          3  Yorkers who were made keenly aware of the threat

          4  posed by illegal guns.

          5                 Tough local laws are more important

          6  now than ever given efforts by lawmakers in

          7  Washington DC to block sensible gun laws. Federal

          8  lawmakers have abdicated their role in helping to

          9  reduce the number of illegal guns that cross from

         10  states with weak gun laws to states with strong laws

         11  like New York.

         12                 He assault by federal lawmakers on

         13  gun laws goes further than simply denying sensible

         14  legislation.

         15                 Funding the Bureau of Alcohol,

         16  Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) has been made

         17  contingent on agreement to withhold crime gun trace

         18  data from publication and full use by even law

         19  enforcement. Legislation is currently pending in the

         20  House of representatives that would make it

         21  difficult to prosecute rogue gun dealers, and would

         22  allow inter-state sales of guns, effectively gutting

         23  key provisions of the 1968 Gun Control Act. NYAGV

         24  supports the package of legislation proposed by

         25  Mayor Bloomberg, Council Speaker Christine Quinn and
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          2  Public Safety Committee Chair Peter Vallone Jr.

          3                 MEASURES TO REDUCE GUN VIOLENCE.

          4                 Intro. No. 362 Creates a Gun Offender

          5  Registry.

          6                 Intro 362 requires that persons

          7  convicted of crimes with guns be subject to an

          8  intensive supervision program operated by the New

          9  York Police Department. NYAGV supports this

         10  legislation since gun offenders are highly likely to

         11  commit other violent crimes.

         12                 We ask the City Council to pass

         13  Intro. NO. 362.

         14                 Intro No. 363.

         15                 Intro 363 requires that gun dealers

         16  physically examine their inventories every six

         17  months and submit reports to the New York Police

         18  Department. According to the ATF, licensed gun

         19  dealers are the single largest source of crime guns.

         20  While most gun dealers are responsible, those who

         21  are sloppy or corrupt are able to flood the streets

         22  with crime guns. Just 1% of dealers are responsible

         23  for almost 60% of crime guns. This requirement is

         24  not onerous, responsible businesses conduct frequent

         25  inventories as a matter of routine. This requirement
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          2  can save olives by ensuring all gun dealers keep

          3  careful records of the deadly weapons in their

          4  possession.

          5                 We ask the City Council to pass Intro

          6  No. 363.

          7                 Intro No. 364.

          8                 Intro 364 limits the purchase of

          9  handguns to one handgun every three months. The

         10  reason for this legislation is to address one of the

         11  means gun traffickers use to acquire weapons.

         12  According to the ATF, one of the indicators of gun

         13  trafficking is multiple gun purchases. This is a

         14  reasonable requirement and one that can foil gun

         15  traffickers.

         16                 We ask the City Council to pass Intro

         17  No. 364.

         18                 Intro No. 365.

         19                 Intro 365 bans the use of coloration

         20  kits on guns. Some companies are now marketing

         21  paints that allow guns to become brightly colored

         22  and appear as toy guns. This is a dangerous practice

         23  in two years. First of all a child can mistake a

         24  colorful gun for a toy, with tragic consequences.

         25                 Secondly, it places police officers
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          2  in a very difficult position in which thy must make

          3  a determination as to whether an individual is

          4  carrying a toy gun or real gun. If the gun is real,

          5  the second they delay could prove deadly. If the gun

          6  is a toy and they think it is real, the outcome is

          7  also tragic. There is simply no reason to put law

          8  enforcement officers or any New Yorkers in this

          9  situation. A ban on the coloration of guns is a

         10  commons sense (sic) measure that will save lives.

         11                 We ask the City Council to pass Intro

         12  365.

         13                 CONCLUSION

         14                 We thank Chairman Vallone and members

         15  of the committee for the opportunity to submit

         16  testimony and for calling attention to the need for

         17  sensible gun laws.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 27th day of June 2006.
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